

THE CITY OF WEST JORDAN, UTAH

ORDINANCE NO. 26-11

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2009 WEST JORDAN CITY CODE
(TRUCK PARKING);

Title 7, Chapter 3, Section 12, and Title 7, Chapter 4

WHEREAS, the City of West Jordan (“City”) adopted West Jordan City Code (“City Code”) in 2009; and the City Council of the City (“Council” or “City Council”) desires to amend Title 7, Chapter 3, Section 12, and Title 7, Chapter 4 of the City Code (“proposed City Code amendments”); and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to revise the City Code pertaining to the manner in which certain vehicles are parked on City streets; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized by Utah State Code to pass legislation concerning the use of City streets; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City to adopt the proposed City Code amendments.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST JORDAN, UTAH AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Amendment of City Code Provision. City Code Title 7, Chapter 3, Section 12 is amended as shown in Attachments 1 (Legislative Version) and 2 (Clean Version) to this Ordinance.

Section 2. Amendment of City Code Provision. City Code Title 7, Chapter 4 is amended as shown in Attachments 3 (Legislative Version) and 4 (Clean Version) to this Ordinance

Section 3. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance is declared to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder shall not be affected thereby.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon posting or publication as provided by law and upon (i) the Mayor signing the Ordinance, (ii) the City Council duly overriding the veto of the Mayor as provided by law, or (iii) the Mayor failing to sign or veto the Ordinance within fifteen (15) days after the City Council presents the Ordinance to the Mayor.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST JORDAN, UTAH, THIS 24TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2026.

CITY OF WEST JORDAN

By: 
Bob Bedore
Council Chair

ATTEST:


Cindy M. Quick, MMC
Council Office Clerk



[See next page.]

Voting by the City Council

"YES"

"NO"

Council Chair Bob Bedore

Council Vice-Chair Jessica Wignall

Council Member Annette Harris

Council Member Zach Jacob

Council Member Chad Lamb

Council Member Kent Shelton

Council Member Kayleen Whitelock

PRESENTED TO THE MAYOR BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON MARCH 3, 2026.

Mayor's Action: X Approve _____ Veto

By: 
Mayor Dirk Burton

Mar 3, 2026
Date

ATTEST:

 

Tangee Sloan, MMC, UCC
City Recorder

STATEMENT OF APPROVAL/PASSAGE (check one)

 X The Mayor approved and signed Ordinance No. 26-11.

_____ The Mayor vetoed Ordinance No. 26-11 on _____ and the City Council timely overrode the veto of the Mayor by a vote of _____ to _____.

_____ Ordinance No. 26-11 became effective by operation of law without the Mayor's approval or disapproval.

 

Tangee Sloan, MMC, UCC
City Recorder

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLICATION

I, Tangee Sloan, certify that I am the City Recorder of the City of West Jordan, Utah, and that a short summary of the foregoing ordinance was published on the Utah Public Notice Website on the 9th day of March 2026. The fully executed copy of the ordinance is retained in the Office of the City Recorder pursuant to Utah Code Annotated, 10-3-711.

 

Tangee Sloan, MMC, UCC
City Recorder

(Attachments on the following pages.)

**Attachments 1 and 2 to
ORDINANCE NO. 26-11
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2009 WEST JORDAN CITY CODE
(TRUCK PARKING);
Title 7, Chapter 3, Section 12, and Title 7, Chapter 4**

Attachment 1 – Title 7, Chapter 3, Section 12 Legislative Version

Attachment 2 – Title 7, Chapter 3, Section 12 Clean Version

(See the following pages for the attachments.)

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

7-3-12: PARKING OF TRUCKS:

A. A person may not park a truck, truck-tractor, semitrailer or trailer on a public street unless:

1. ~~Unless a~~It is actively ~~etually~~ loading or unloading equipment or merchandise ~~for no~~ more than three hours; or

2. It meets the following conditions:

a. ~~It is more than 30 feet from the entrance, exit, or intersection of any private driveway, private street, alley, or public street~~100 yards from a residence; and:

b. It is more than 45 feet from an intersection; and

c. It is more than 15 feet from a fire hydrant or mailbox, 20 feet from a crosswalk, and 50 feet from a railroad crossing.

B. For the purposes of this section, a truck is considered parked, even though the motor is running, if the vehicle is left standing for any period ~~of~~in excess of three minutes.

C. A vehicle parked in violation of this section may be immobilized, moved, or impounded by a law enforcement officer. (2001 Code § 86-7-102; amd. Ord. 24-51, 11-6-2024)

7-3-12: PARKING OF TRUCKS:

A. A person may not park a truck, truck-tractor, semitrailer or trailer on a public street unless:

1. It is actively loading or unloading equipment or merchandise for no more than three hours; or

2. It meets the following conditions:

a. It is more than 100 yards from a residence; and

b. It is more than 45 feet from an intersection; and

c. It is more than 15 feet from a fire hydrant or mailbox, 20 feet from a crosswalk, and 50 feet from a railroad crossing.

B. For the purposes of this section, a truck is considered parked, even though the motor is running, if the vehicle is left standing for any period in excess of three minutes.

C. A vehicle parked in violation of this section may be immobilized, moved, or impounded by a law enforcement officer. (2001 Code § 86-7-102; amd. Ord. 24-51, 11-6-2024)

Attachments 3 and 4 to

ORDINANCE NO. 26-11

**AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2009 WEST JORDAN CITY CODE
(TRUCK PARKING);**

Title 7, Chapter 3, Section 12, and Title 7, Chapter 4

Attachment 1 – Title 7, Chapter 4 Legislative Version

Attachment 2 – Title 7, Chapter 4 Clean Version

(See the following pages for the attachments)

1 CHAPTER 4
2 TRUCKS

3 SECTION:

4 ~~7-4-1: Definitions~~

5 ~~7-4-2: Parking Of Trucks~~

6 ~~7-4-3~~1: Truck Routes

7 ~~7-4-4~~2: Loads To Be Covered

8 ~~7-4-5~~3: Penalty

9

10 ~~7-4-1: DEFINITIONS:~~

11 ~~—A.— The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the~~
12 ~~meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a~~
13 ~~different meaning:~~

14 ~~RESIDENTIAL AREA : The territory contiguous to and including a highway not comprising a~~
15 ~~Business District when the property on such highway for a distance of three hundred feet~~
16 ~~(300') or more is in the main improved with residences.~~

17 ~~SEMITRAILER : Every vehicle with or without motive power, other than a police trailer,~~
18 ~~designed for carrying persons or property and for being drawn by a motor vehicle for~~
19 ~~commercial purposes and so constructed that some part of its weight and that of its load~~
20 ~~rests upon or is carried by another vehicle.~~

21 ~~TRAILER : Every vehicle with or without motive power, other than a police trailer, designed~~
22 ~~for carrying persons or property for commercial purposes and for being drawn by a motor~~
23 ~~vehicle and so constructed that no part of its weight rests upon the towing vehicle.~~

24 ~~TRUCK : Every motor vehicle designed, used or maintained primarily for the transportation~~
25 ~~of property for commercial purposes having a registered gross vehicle weight exceeding~~
26 ~~eighteen thousand (18,000) pounds.~~

27 ~~TRUCK-TRACTOR : Every motor vehicle designed and used primarily for commercial~~
28 ~~purposes for drawing other vehicles and not so constructed as to carry a load other than a~~
29 ~~part of the weight of the vehicle and load so drawn.~~

30 ~~—B.— The definitions of semitrailer, trailer, truck and truck-tractor shall not be construed~~
31 ~~to include privately owned trailers, boat trailers, camping trailers, and recreation vehicles~~
32 ~~used for private noncommercial purposes. (2001 Code § 86-7-101)~~

33

34 ~~7-4-2: PARKING OF TRUCKS:~~

- 35 ~~—A. No truck, truck tractor, semitrailer or trailer shall be parked:~~
36 ~~—1. On a public street, except while actually loading or unloading merchandise.~~
37 ~~—2. On a public street closer than thirty feet (30') to the entrance, exit or intersection~~
38 ~~with any private driveway, private street, alley or public street.~~
39 ~~—B. For the purposes of this section, a truck shall be deemed parked, even though the~~
40 ~~motor is running, if the vehicle is left standing for any period of excess of three (3) minutes,~~
41 ~~except when unloading or loading. (2001 Code § 86-7-102)~~

42

43 7-4-~~13~~: TRUCK ROUTES:

44 A. Designated:

45 1. ~~The following streets are designated as t~~Truck routes are designated by the city
46 traffic engineer and are reflected in the transportation master plan. Designated truck
47 routes shall avoid residential streets.

48 ~~—Airport Road from northern City boundary to New Bingham Highway.~~

49 ~~—Bangerter Highway (approximately 3600 West) from northern City boundary to~~
50 ~~southern City boundary.~~

51 ~~—Campus View Drive from Jordan Landing Boulevard to 7800 South.~~

52 ~~—Dannon Way from 5600 West to 6400 West.~~

53 ~~—Farm Road from 4000 West to 4300 West.~~

54 ~~—Haun Drive from 2700 West to 3200 West.~~

55 ~~—Hawley Park Road from 5600 West to Old Bingham Highway.~~

56 ~~—Jordan Landing Boulevard from Bangerter Highway to 7800 South.~~

57 ~~—Mountain View Freeway from northern City boundary to southern City boundary.~~

58 ~~—New Bingham Highway from intersection with 7800 South to western City boundary.~~

59 ~~—Nike Drive from 4000 West to 4300 West.~~

60 ~~—Old Bingham Highway from intersection with 7800 South to western City boundary.~~

61 ~~—Prosperity Road from New Bingham Highway to Old Bingham Highway.~~

62 ~~—Redwood Road from northern City boundary to southern City boundary.~~

63 ~~—State Road U-111 from northern City boundary to southern City boundary.~~

64 ~~—Welby Park Drive from New Bingham Highway to 8200 South.~~

- 65 ~~— Wells Park Road from Hawley Park Road to 6800 West.~~
- 66 ~~— 1300 West from 7800 South to 9000 South.~~
- 67 ~~— 2700 West from 8600 South to 9000 South.~~
- 68 ~~— 3200 West from 8600 South to 9000 South.~~
- 69 ~~— 4000 West from 7800 South to 9000 South.~~
- 70 ~~— 4300 West from 8200 South to Farm Road.~~
- 71 ~~— 5600 West from northern City boundary to southern City boundary.~~
- 72 ~~— 6200 South from Bangerter Highway to 5600 West.~~
- 73 ~~— 7000 South from eastern City boundary to Redwood Road.~~
- 74 ~~— 7800 South from eastern City boundary to state Road U-111.~~
- 75 ~~— 8370 South from 4000 West to 4300 West.~~
- 76 ~~— 8600 South from 3200 West to Old Bingham Highway.~~
- 77 ~~— 9000 South from eastern City boundary to the intersection with the Mountain View~~
- 78 ~~Freeway at 5800 West.~~

79 2. All trucks, truck-tractors, semitrailers and trailers, and all vehicles carrying
80 flammable liquids in excess of ~~three thousand (3,000)~~ gallons, explosives ~~and or~~ corrosives,
81 shall, except as provided in this section, follow ~~such~~ designated truck routes ~~and not depart~~
82 ~~from such routes.~~ Temporary alternative truck routes may be designated by the mayor or
83 their designee. ~~The mayor may, in writing, designate temporary alternative truck routes~~
84 ~~and authorize trucks to depart from the truck routes for a temporary period not exceeding~~
85 ~~thirty (30) days, when road repairs or other obstructions block the truck routes and when~~
86 ~~a report of such authorization is made to the City Council at the next regularly scheduled~~
87 ~~Council meeting.~~

88 B. Exceptions: ~~The truck routes specified in subsection A of this section~~ Designated truck
89 routes shall not apply to

- 90 1. a trucks delivering to or returning from construction sites where it is not possible to
91 use a designated truck route; ~~or, or to~~
- 92 2. a trucks making a direct delivery of ~~delivering~~ merchandise to or from a local
93 businesses or local residences located ~~or established truck terminals~~ within the city;
94 or
- 95 3. a truck or truck tractor traveling to or from a licensed garage where the vehicle will
96 be lawfully repaired or serviced, if travel or delivery is made by the most direct and
97 shortest route; ~~or;~~

98 4. A truck tractor ~~truck-tractor~~, not attached to a trailer or semitrailer, ~~may depart~~
99 ~~from the truck routes, notwithstanding any provisions of this chapter to the~~
100 ~~contrary, and may be if traveling to~~ parked on private property in compliance with
101 ~~the City Zoning Ordinance~~ city code; or:

102 5. an unladen truck tractor traveling for the sole purpose of going to or returning from
103 a retail fuel outlet. The route of travel must be as reasonably direct as possible; or

104 6. a truck or truck tractor using a detour route due to a temporary road closure.

105 ~~—C. Going To Or From Retail Fuel Outlet: An unladen truck or truck tractor subject to this~~
106 ~~section may, for the sole purpose of going to or returning from a retail fuel outlet, depart~~
107 ~~from the truck routes designated in this section; however, the route of travel must be as~~
108 ~~reasonably direct as possible.~~

109 ~~D.C. Signs Required:~~ The mayor or his~~their~~ designee shall~~may~~ install ~~on major streets~~
110 ~~near their intersections with streets designated as truck routes in this section~~ signs which
111 indicate, in words or in pictures, that trucks are prohibited from certain roads. Where such
112 signs are installed, the mayor or his~~their~~ designee may install additional signage to the
113 effect that local deliveries are permitted in accordance with ~~subsection B of this~~
114 ~~section~~ chapter.

115 ~~D.E. Signs Prohibiting Use Of Dynamic Engine Braking Devices:~~ The mayor or his~~their~~
116 designee shall~~may~~ ~~cause to be installed adjacent to truck routes~~ install appropriate signage
117 along truck routes which indicates that the use of dynamic engine braking devices ~~by which~~
118 ~~compression within the vehicle engine slows or stops the vehicle's forward motion is~~ are
119 prohibited. The use of engine brakes within said areas may be prosecuted as provided
120 herein. (2001 Code § 86-7-103; amd. Ord. 16-40, 10-12-2016; Ord. 19-04, 1-23-2019; Ord.
121 21-04, 2-10-2021)

122

123 7-4-~~4~~2: LOADS TO BE COVERED:

124 It is unlawful for any person to haul, convey or transport through or upon any of the public
125 streets any garbage, ~~ashes, market wastes, manure, night soil, loose paper, scrap paper,~~
126 ~~excelsior, tree limbs, bush clippings, lawn clippings, house refuse, yard refuse, liquid wastes~~
127 ~~or any other refuse materials, in open trucks, open trailers or other open conveyances,~~
128 unless covered completely ~~by a heavy duty canvas or other similar material which shall~~ to
129 prevent the spillage of any materials ~~from such vehicles at all times when the vehicles are~~
130 ~~being used for the collection of, or carrying, transporting or hauling of any of such~~
131 ~~materials.~~ (2001 Code § 86-7-104)

132

133 7-4-~~5~~3: PENALTY:

134 ~~It is unlawful for any driver or other person having control of any vehicle to violate or allow~~
135 ~~such vehicle to be operated in violation of the provisions of this chapter. A first violation of~~
136 ~~this chapter shall be an infraction. Any subsequent violations of this chapter by the same~~

137 ~~driver or other person having control of any vehicle that is allowed to violate this chapter~~
138 ~~shall be enhanced to a Class C misdemeanor.~~ A violation of this chapter may be prosecuted
139 as a civil citation or as a Class C misdemeanor. (2001 Code § 86-7-105; amd. 2009 Code)

CHAPTER 4
TRUCKS

SECTION:

7-4-1: Truck Routes

7-4-2: Loads To Be Covered

7-4-3: Penalty

7-4-1: TRUCK ROUTES:

A. Designated:

1. Truck routes are designated by the city traffic engineer and are reflected in the transportation master plan. Designated truck routes shall avoid residential streets.

2. All trucks, truck-tractors, semitrailers and trailers, and all vehicles carrying flammable liquids in excess of 3,000 gallons, explosives or corrosives, shall, except as provided in this section, follow designated truck routes. Temporary alternative truck routes may be designated by the mayor or their designee.

B. Exceptions: Designated truck routes shall not apply to

1. a truck delivering to or returning from construction sites where it is not possible to use a designated truck route; or
2. a truck making a direct delivery of merchandise to or from a businesses or residence located within the city; or
3. a truck or truck tractor traveling to or from a licensed garage where the vehicle will be lawfully repaired or serviced, if travel or delivery is made by the most direct and shortest route; or
4. a truck tractor not attached to a trailer or semitrailer if traveling to park on private property in compliance with city code; or
5. an unladen truck tractor traveling for the sole purpose of going to or returning from a retail fuel outlet. The route of travel must be as reasonably direct as possible; or
6. a truck or truck tractor using a detour route due to a temporary road closure.

C. The mayor or their designee may install signs which indicate, in words or in pictures, that trucks are prohibited from certain roads. Where such signs are installed, the mayor or their designee may install additional signage to the effect that local deliveries are permitted in accordance with this chapter.

D. The mayor or their designee may install signage along truck routes which indicates that the use of dynamic engine braking devices are prohibited. The use of engine brakes within said areas may be prosecuted as provided herein. (2001 Code § 86-7-103; amd. Ord. 16-40, 10-12-2016; Ord. 19-04, 1-23-2019; Ord. 21-04, 2-10-2021)

7-4-2: LOADS TO BE COVERED:

It is unlawful for any person to haul, convey or transport through or upon any of the public streets any garbage or other refuse materials unless covered completely to prevent the spillage of any materials (2001 Code § 86-7-104)

7-4-3: PENALTY:

A violation of this chapter may be prosecuted as a civil citation or as a Class C misdemeanor. (2001 Code § 86-7-105; amd. 2009 Code)

Ordinance No. 26-11 Amending WJCC Title 7, Ch 3 and 4 - Truck Parking

Final Audit Report

2026-03-09

Created:	2026-03-03
By:	Cindy Quick (Cindy.quick@westjordan.utah.gov)
Status:	Signed
Transaction ID:	CBJCHBCAABAA6F1P4La6zRC_hc9y6n4FBxY0w9PNqekF

"Ordinance No. 26-11 Amending WJCC Title 7, Ch 3 and 4 - Truck Parking" History

-  Document created by Cindy Quick (Cindy.quick@westjordan.utah.gov)
2026-03-03 - 10:10:59 PM GMT
-  Document emailed to bob.bedore@westjordan.utah.gov for signature
2026-03-03 - 10:16:14 PM GMT
-  Email viewed by bob.bedore@westjordan.utah.gov
2026-03-03 - 11:02:54 PM GMT
-  Signer bob.bedore@westjordan.utah.gov entered name at signing as Bob Bedore
2026-03-03 - 11:03:27 PM GMT
-  Document e-signed by Bob Bedore (bob.bedore@westjordan.utah.gov)
Signature Date: 2026-03-03 - 11:03:29 PM GMT - Time Source: server
-  Document emailed to Cindy Quick (Cindy.quick@westjordan.utah.gov) for signature
2026-03-03 - 11:03:32 PM GMT
-  Document e-signed by Cindy Quick (Cindy.quick@westjordan.utah.gov)
Signature Date: 2026-03-03 - 11:08:55 PM GMT - Time Source: server
-  Document emailed to Dirk Burton (dirk.burton@westjordan.utah.gov) for signature
2026-03-03 - 11:08:58 PM GMT
-  Email viewed by Dirk Burton (dirk.burton@westjordan.utah.gov)
2026-03-04 - 1:22:35 AM GMT
-  Document e-signed by Dirk Burton (dirk.burton@westjordan.utah.gov)
Signature Date: 2026-03-04 - 1:23:03 AM GMT - Time Source: server

 Document emailed to Tangee Sloan (tangee.sloan@westjordan.utah.gov) for signature

2026-03-04 - 1:23:05 AM GMT

 Email viewed by Tangee Sloan (tangee.sloan@westjordan.utah.gov)

2026-03-09 - 7:01:36 PM GMT

 Document e-signed by Tangee Sloan (tangee.sloan@westjordan.utah.gov)

Signature Date: 2026-03-09 - 7:02:04 PM GMT - Time Source: server

 Agreement completed.

2026-03-09 - 7:02:04 PM GMT